Public Document Pack

Children's Scrutiny Panel
Dear Member,
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Children's Scrutiny Panel to be held as
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Sian Roxborough
Monitoring Officer
The council is currently holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to
maintain the safety of the public, staff and councillors.
The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and
input into the decision-making process.
Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed,
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.
Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.
Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus
DATE:

Wednesday, 10 March 2021

TIME:

6.00 pm

VENUE:

Online Live meeting (Microsoft Teams - audio only) via the link

AGENDA
1

Apologies for Absence
ONLINE LIVE MEETING (MICROSOFT TEAMS - AUDIO ONLY)
VIA THE LINK BELOW:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetupjoin/19%3ameeting_MGIwYzI0ZDMtNTNjZC00NTQxLWI4NjEtMTk0Z
TE4MTQxYjAy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268
c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22d7e0a353-9a97-4a8e952cf6451ae2de66%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d&bty
pe=a&role=a

2

Declarations of interest

3

Minutes of the previous meeting

(Pages 1 - 6)

Minutes of the meeting held on 10th February 2021.
4

Corporate Parenting Panel Update - Sayma Khan

(Pages 7 - 10)

5

Budget Monitoring Report - Chris Mee

(Pages 11 - 18)

6

Work Programme and Membership

(Pages 19 - 22)

7

Any Other business

8

Date, time and business for next meeting
Wednesday 14th April 2021 at 6pm (5.30pm for members of the
panel).

Contact Officer:
Tel No:
E-Mail:

Liz Wright
0161 793 2811
decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

Agenda Item 3
Children’s Scrutiny Panel
10th February 2021
Meeting commenced: 6.00pm
Meeting ended: 7:15pm
Present:
Councillor Brocklehurst (in the chair)
Councillors:
Joshua Brooks, Jillian Collinson, Laura Edwards, Ari Leitner, Lewis Nelson, Mike Pevitt, Neil
Reynolds, Madeline Wade, Joan Walsh, Collette Weir, Ronnie Wilson.
Co-opted Members:
Dr Keith Archer, Jacqui Morrissey, Judith Elderkin.
Also, in attendance:
Councillor John Walsh (Executive Support Member for Children’s and Young People’s Services).
Officers:
Debbie Blackburn –
Liz Wright – Democratic Services (Clerk)
Members of the public:



One
Streamed as an audio meeting via Microsoft Team via Watch Live Council Meetings page on
the city council website.

1. Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence as all members were in attendance.
2. Minutes of the previous meeting
Resolved: That, the minutes of the meeting held on 13.01.20 were approved as a correct
record.
3. Declarations of interest
Councillor Edwards declared and interest for herself and her partner in Place 2 Be.
4. Matters arising from the minutes
There were no matters arising.
5. The report on the review of access to children and young people's mental health
services (including bereavement services)
The Assistant Director Education, Public Health Nursing and Wellbeing (Debbie Blackburn)

Children’s Scrutiny Panel 10.02.21

Page 1

1








National research had shown that the rates of probable mental health disorders had
increased from the rate of 1 in 9 young person (5-16 years) in 2017 to 1 in 6 in 2020.
The impact of the Covid19 pandemic had made the rates worse. Children’s friendship and
relationship groups had been disrupted because of the school closures and lockdown,
which had also impacted on the social activities that were often important coping
mechanisms for young people. School often also offered a respite from Domestic Abuse
cases.
Services had worked together in partnership to deal with the impact of the pandemic and
the following summary was given of the key developments and challenges during the past
12 months:
o Mental Health in Education – Mental Health Support teams (MHST): Salford was
selected as a Greater Manchester (GM) trailblazer site to implement MHSTs, that was
called ‘Thrive in Education’ team.
o Gaddum: increased CCG funding to extend capacity of their bereavement counselling
service for young people aged 11-18 in response to existing capacity issues and
anticipated COVID pressures.
o Kooth online emotional health and wellbeing service.
o Salford strategic review of children’s and young people’s counselling.
o Neuro Development needs-led pathway: significant progress on developing pathway in
preparation for launch in January. Communications already shared with GPs in
December and planned across the wider system January - March 2021.
o Transitions Policy & pathways guidance documents in final draft and are subject to
partner governance and sign off.
o COVID impact, recovery & surge planning ongoing and subject to regular review.
o A proposal for additional capacity in 42nd street had been submitted to address COVID
related service pressures, capacity and sustainability.
o A Thrive Partnership engagement meeting was held on 8th December, to identify
challenges and priorities for 2021 and to inform the Thrive Plan update report 2021.
o MSEDS: business case for recurrent additional investment in eating disorder service
approved.
o Ongoing delivery of Thrive and Trauma Training programmes, evaluation reports and
recommendations provided in December to inform future commissioning plans. 238
people attended 9 Thrive related training and staff briefing sessions between April 2020
– Jan 2021. 914 people attended 10 trauma training workshops between July-November
2020
o Ongoing: Thrive Network: email bulletins sent out on a weekly basis providing service
updates, information and resources alongside the EHWB webpages being kept updated,
online directory format revised and updated
o In December, Salford Thrive Partnership met to review progress against the Plan and to
identify key challenges and priorities for 2021-22.
The impact of Covid19 and a summary of the key challenges were outlined as follows:
o COVID 19 – lockdown restrictions, access and pathways, health and safety, shift to
digital access/remote working, re-introduction of face to face services, the difficulties for
children and young people in engaging in services from home (privacy, other
priorities/family issues, technology).
o Surge pressures, service planning and assurance, frequency of communication across
the system to keep children’s workforce, parents/carers and young people informed of
changes.
o Impacts on waiting times and pace/scale of development in online/digital offer.

Children’s Scrutiny Panel 10.02.21

Page 2

2



o Staff, service and commissioning capacity to deliver on priorities, develop, implement
and monitor new projects services. Staff shortages, vacancies, sickness and selfisolation.
 Maintaining service staff wellbeing and motivation.
The Children and Mental Health Services had also been responding to the needs of staff
during the pandemic and had also involved children in the co-production of how services
would be delivered and staff had reported feeling more empowered.

The Chair of the panel invited questions and comments from members at this point.
 A member asked about the number of schools that had signed up to the Thrive Programme,
as it was reported that 38 had signed up at this current time. The member also asked about
the concern that children would be labelled as having mental health issues. The members
were advised that the language used had been changed n Salford to try and avoid labelling
children, for example behaviour would be described as distressed rather than challenging.
Processes had been changes to avoid traumatising children and families and a clear
distinction was being made between mental health support and mental health diagnosis.
Where Thrive was not yet in a school they would buy in early support to bolster their
pastoral care.
 A member asked if more CAMHS staff could be employed and if the money was available
to do this. It was confirmed that investment had increased in CAMHS over the last five
years. Staffing was challenging as appropriately qualified people were in high demand, so
the development of a pipeline was an important feature of the workforce strategy to develop
people to fill the posts.
 A member asked about the support for Early Years (EY) children and if preventative
initiatives had been put in place. It was confirmed that this was a key priority for next year,
which early identification and intervention a key focus. Children’s Services and Adult
Services were working together so that services were being provided to support parents, as
supporting parents could often be the most effective way to help very young children.
Emotionally Friendly settings initiative was being rolled out to EY setting.
 A member asked about the impact of Covid19 on staff resources and the practicalities of
providing cove and filling vacancies. It was reported that there were robust risk
assessments in place to protect staff to reduce the risk of transmission in the workplace in
the first instance. There had not been a significant impact on staffing levels. Staff had
been able to work away from home if unwell or have been redeployed to different duties if
necessary.
 A member asked how private and discreet conversations could be held with young people
during Covid19 when practices were having to be changed due to the pandemic. It was
reported that services had been planning their work on an individual basis and so have
been able to offer face to face meetings in clinical Covid safe settings and many young
people had embraced talking /meeting remotely by phone or IT device. CAMHS had
adapted services based on what the young person would say worked for them.
 The national target for access to NHS funded services for children with diagnosable mental
health conditions was 35% and Salford was shown to be at 51% over the last 12 months,
higher than the North West, GM and the national (England) rates.
 GM was also on target for exceeding accessing eating disorder services. There had been
100% access for eating disorder referrals and the % of children and young people
accessing the service within a week was above the North West and national (England)
levels.
 Services such as 42nd Street had continued to provide flexible support tailored to the needs
of young people, with more accessing the service more quickly via the online offer.

Children’s Scrutiny Panel 10.02.21

Page 3

3
















Bereavement support was provided by The Gaddum Centre (providing need-led
therapeutic) for Salford and Manchester. Support was also provided for the adults who
were caring for a bereaved child, as they were often bereaved themselves.
Specialist palliative care counselling was also provided for children and families needing
extra support for children with life limiting illnesses. This support was available to the child,
the whole family or specific member of the family and their friends and carers.
Support was also available from Cruse Bereavement Care in Salford and in GM an
interactive map was provided so that families could see what services were available in
their area.
An update was given on the Salford Thrive Plan that would be published before the end of
March and included details of the review of the impact of the Covid19 on the mental health
services.
A Children’s Panel would be set up as an online forum for children to hold the Assistant
Director to account for the services provided.
There was an update on Thrive in Education and the mental health support services in
schools. Salford’s ‘blended’ model brought together an integrated delivery team involving
CAMHS, 42nd Street, Place2Be, and Salford City Council’s Educational Psychology Service
and Early Help Schools Co-ordinator’s. The wider team around the school approach also
involved our 0-19 School Health Service, Youth Service, Salford Community Leisure,
Salford Schools Sports Partnership and wider Council education support services and
children’s health services.
The work of the Thrive in Education Team was explained and it was reported that between
October and December 2020 the team had engaged with 38 schools (28 primary and 10
secondary) and supported 187 young people. The feedback from the schools had been
very positive.
Young people were being supported to become mental health champions and per
supporters and this had worked well in other areas.
Staff training and development had been a key focus and large numbers of staff had been
trained. The Salford Way training had been developed to align to the Thrive model and 914
people had attended from a range of services and partners.
Child Bereavement UK (a national bereavement charity) had provided a 90 minute webinar
in Salford that covered bereavement on children and young people, drawing on both
theoretical background and practical interventions. The session took place in October 202
and was attended by 58 people.
Other training had been provided by Kooth, Gaddum and Wellbeing for Education Return.

The Chair of the panel invited further questions and comments from members at this point.
 A member welcomed the investment in bereavement services and asked if it had been
difficult to get young people to engage with the services. It was confirmed that Do Not
Access (DNA) rates were monitored and the online offer had increased the access as there
were less barriers for young people, such as travel, and there was more flexibility about
when services could be accessed.
 A member commented that the training offer was extensive and the take up of training was
very positive.
 A member asked if there was a danger that parents could get confused by all the services
on offer. It was explained that the joined up approach in Salford helped overcome this and
where there was any confusion this was usually easily overcome. The Thrive website was
designed to help parents understand and navigate the system and it had received some
very good feedback. Feedback was encouraged as the website was would be adapted to
ensure it met parents’ needs.

Children’s Scrutiny Panel 10.02.21

Page 4

4



A member commented that a lot of the training seemed to be aimed at schools and asked if
it could be opened up to parents and families. It was confirmed that the webinars (e.g. on
suicide awareness) had been well publicised and had been open to anyone to apply to
attend. Training had been targeted at certain sectors of the community as well, for example
hairdressers and barbers had been trained in suicide prevention, as this had seemed
appropriate because of the particular had contact with the public.

The Chair thanked Assistant Director Education, Public Health Nursing and Wellbeing for her
comprehensive report and presentation.
Resolved: That, the panel noted the report.
Work Programme and Membership
a. The work programme
 A first draft of the work programme showing proposals for the first few meetings of the
municipal year had been circulated.
 The Chair commented that at his quarterly meeting with the Lead Member (LM) for
Children’s and Young People’s Services, the challenges for officers taking on extra work
during the pandemic was very challenging.
 The Assistant Director Education, Public Health Nursing and Wellbeing advised that new
data would not be available for reports on childhood obesity and children’s dental health as
the epidemiology surveys had not been possible due the restrictions in place because of the
pandemic. The data would be out of date but updates could be provided on what had been
provided in these areas.
 The work programme was in draft would be further discussed at the next quarterly meeting
by the Chair with the LM. In light of Covid19 and the elections the plan is likely to evolve
ready for discussion at the June planning meeting.
 It was agreed that the Lead Member for Children’s and Young People’s Services, Councillor
John Merry, would be invited to the June business planning meeting.
b. Membership
 The Chair had approached Salford SACRE (Standing Advisory Council for Religious
Education) for a Jewish Community representative to join the panel. The clerk would follow
the contacts at SACRE and keep the Chair informed.
 The clerk had received some interest in the parent governor nominations following the
distribution of the election materials to all eligible parent governors. No actual nominations
had yet been received. The deadline for nominations was 14 th March 2021.
Resolved: That, the panel agreed to invite the Lead Member for Children’s and Young People’s
Services to the June 2021 meeting.
7. Any Other business
a. Childhood Obesity Webinar
The Chair thanked Councillor Collison for drawing this Local Government Association (LGA)
webinar to the attention of the panel. The webinar was in held as two separate sessions on 8th
and 9th March 2021. The clerk would email the details of the webinar, and the link for registering
for the course, to all members.
Children’s Scrutiny Panel 10.02.21

Page 5

5

8. Date, time and business for next meeting
Wednesday 10th March 2021 at 6pm (5:30pm briefing for members).

Children’s Scrutiny Panel 10.02.21

Page 6

6

Agenda Item 4
Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
or
Part 2: Closed to the Public – Item No.
REPORT ON BEHALF OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR - PEOPLE

TO
CHILDREN’S SCRUTINY PANEL

ON
2nd March 2021
TITLE: Corporate Parenting Panel Update.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That Scrutiny accepts this Corporate Parenting Panel update for the period
October 2020 – November 2020, following on from the previous update of the
July – September 2020 work of the Corporate Parenting Panel.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The Corporate Parenting Panel meets monthly to discuss issues pertinent to the care
and wellbeing of looked after children and care leavers.
Reports and data from officers are scheduled regularly on the agenda as well as
Regulation 44 visits to the Children’s homes.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

KEY DECISION:

YES / NO

DETAILS:
The corporate parenting panel met in October and November 2020.
All the panels were held virtually by way of Microsoft teams and the attendance was
in line with that of the pre-Covid restrictions.
The panel is attended by a core group of elected members however, this does not
truly reflect the assigned membership numbers of the panel.

Page 7

1

Following discussions held at Scrutiny on 9th September and further discussions with
the Chair of Corporate Parenting panel, invitations to the September panel were
extended to members of the Scrutiny panel.
Composition of panel
Councillor John Walsh (chair)
Elected members
Head of Service Looked after Children
Head of Inclusion & Virtual School Headteacher
Corporate Parenting Officer
Service Manager, Looked after Children
Service Manager, Next Step (leaving care)
Barnardos, Children’s Services Manager
Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children & Looked After Children (NHS Salford
Clinical Commissioning Group)
Team Manager, Residential
Service Manager, IRO service
October Panel
Unfortunately, a minute taker was not available.
Report on the Independent Reviewing Officers was presented which was of a high
quality provided a good insight of what was happening in social work services
There was a recommendation for a letter to be sent to children’s homes to
acknowledge their hard work over the pandemic.
November Panel
Year-end Fostering report was presented. Recruitment was discussed with a variety of
ideas and plans for next year. The focus scheme has been fairly successful, at the end
of March there was 23 households. This year a number of respite carers resigned.
Training has been varied, the current programme was amended due to the pandemic
to enable training to be accessed virtually, the online training programme has been
successful and this will continue for next year, with some face to face training
opportunities anticipated.
Currently the fostering team are working with present foster carers who are interested
in becoming Route29 hub carers and also have two members of Route29 staff training
to become foster carers. There are some really good examples of how well the
relationship is working between the fostering service and Route 29.
Cllr Walsh discussed the Greater Manchester approach. Salford are currently engaged
in the GM discussions around fostering and invest to save models. Mike suggested for
elected members to challenge themselves to get one person recruited to fostering. Cllr
Collinson suggested utilising the education achievement awards – that ceremony
makes us feel incredibly proud, suggested for foster carers to bring two people along
to the event to show the amazing work achieved. Word of mouth is the best
recruitment.

Page 8

2

Since Covid, Salford Council have supported foster carers from the beginning with the
main communication being online. Social workers undertook a RAG rating exercise for
each foster carer. Foster carers have been amazing and adapted extremely well with
home schooling with creativity and without complaint. Salford agreed and enabled
some additional financial support for carers. At the beginning of the pandemic, for 12
weeks they received an extra £10 per child which was gratefully received. Their work
and commitment has been recognised consistently.
The Care Leavers Pledge was discussed. This is regarding the work that was been
offered from the housing providers – For Housing, Pendleton Together and Salix. The
majority of our young people are in accommodation provided by those three larger
organisations. Some providers have offered different things.
Route 29 had an Ofsted monitoring visit - the Ofsted inspectors provided positive
feedback by the offer of Route29 and the prevention strategy within the wider
community to lower the possibility of adolescents coming into care. When there is a
full inspection we should be expecting really positive feedback. There were no
requirements and no recommendations.
Barton Moss was under additional lockdown having had positive Covid tests from some
of the young people. All staff are now wearing facemasks. Numbers have been
significantly lower since March. There are no unnecessary admissions and no
unnecessary movements of people leaving Barton Moss site.
Overall
Elected members were assured that services were continuing to support young people,
during the government restrictions.
A standing item on the panel every month is the regulation 44 visits to children’s
homes, which are usually carried out by an Independent Visitor alongside an elected
member. Elected members continue not to be part of the visiting regime at present, but
this will be regularly reviewed and risk assessed.
Devonshire Road –received a further visit from Ofsted and were assured on their
second visit that the issues had been addressed and Devonshire road is fully
compliant.
Conclusion
The wellbeing of looked after children and care leavers has continued to be at the
forefront of the integrated looked after children service throughout the period of
government restrictions.
Despite an increase in young people’s mental health impacted by covid, officers
continue to go above and beyond and adapt their practice in line with the challenges
of the restrictions.
The Corporate Parenting panel continues to link well with the Fight for Change Council
and key officers in Children’s Services to ensure relevant reports and data are provided
to elected members each month.

Page 9

3

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: N/A

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:N/A

CONTACT OFFICER:

Sayma Khan

TEL NO: 0161 779 7800

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 10

4

Agenda Item 5
Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
REPORT ON BEHALF OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

TO CHILDREN’S SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
ON
10 MARCH 2021
th

TITLE: REVENUE MONITORING 2020/21
RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that Children’s Scrutiny Panel:


Consider the current position and forecast year-end position for the service group’s
revenue budget, Dedicated Schools Grant budget and Children’s element of the
Integrated Fund.
Request further information as necessary to help to ensure good governance.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
(a) Revenue Budget
The service group’s budget for 2020/21 is £94.997m and the forecast expenditure for the
year is £95.335m giving a forecast adverse variation of £0.338m for the financial year,
excluding implications of covid.
(b) Dedicated Schools Grant
The DSG allocation for central services in 2020/21 is £44.824m and the forecast
expenditure for the year is £49.004m, a forecast adverse variation of £4.180m.
(c) Integrated Fund (Children’s)
The current position for the council element of the Children’s element of the integrated fund
is a projected overspend of £1.317m.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:




SAP general ledger and BI reports
Various documents held on the accountancy team

Page 11

1

KEY DECISION:

NO

DETAILS:
1 Introduction

1.1

This report is set out in four main sections.
 Section 2 sets out the current position of the 2020/21 revenue budget and forecasts
the year end position, highlighting any risks/sensitivities
 Section 35 sets out the current position of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and
forecasts the year end position, highlighting any risks/sensitivities.

2 Revenue Budget 2020/21
2.1

The current position and year end forecast for the Revenue Budget is set out in Table A
below. Agreed savings have been built into the budget figures. Expenditure data reflects
salaries, wages and other expenditure up to 31st December 2020, but excludes financial
implications of Covid.

2.2

Table A: Revenue Budget 2020/21
Annual
budget

Forecast
outturn
expend

Variance

Budget
Pressure –
Integrated
Fund

£000

£000

£000

£000

Leadership
&
Safeguarding

2,203

2,194

9

3

Specialist
Services

35,702

35,916

(214)

(6,229)

SEN, Access &
Inclusion

27,945

28,046

(101)

(611)

● (AMBER)

Education
&
Helping Families

29,147

29,179

(32)

5,520

● (GREEN)

Total

94,997

95,335

(338)

(1,317)

Division of
service

2.3

Risk
assessment

● (GREEN)
● (RED)

● (RED)

As detailed above, the above position does not include any financial implications /
pressures from the impact of Covid, which are a mix of both core and integrated fund
cost / income losses, which will be offset by the use of government emergency funding.

Page 12

2

2.4

In 2019/20 the Council and Salford CCG expanded its pooled budget arrangements
through the creation of an integrated fund covering a range of Children’s, Adults and
Primary Care services. Under the terms of the associated risk share agreement each
partner would contribute to the cost of budget pressures in proportion to the contributions
made to the pool for each service area. This means that rather than the budget pressures
falling directly upon the council, the council will instead contribute its share of any budget
pressures within Children’s and Adults Services to the integrated fund.

2.5

It should be noted that the underlying pressure included for the Children’s integrated fund
of £1.317m is after the 100% utilisation of the £5.4m contingency built into the fund in
20/21. This contingency has not yet been allocated to any specific service area
pressures, which as in previous years are mainly within the Looked After Children, Child
Protection and SEN Transport areas. There are a range of factors that will significantly
influence expenditure in relation to the integrated fund in 2020/21. The partners of the
fund are working to quantify the immediate impact on expenditure and funding as a result
of Covid-19, whilst also trying to model the financial impact of how services will continue
to be delivered as part of planning for recovery, with a high level estimate of cost / income
loss pressures of approximately £2.8m. This pressure would be on top of the underlying
(non-covid) pressure of circa £1.3m. The forecast position for the integrated fund for
children’s will continue to be reported through the Children’s Commissioning Committee.

2.6

There is continued pressure on the SEN transport budget with a projected overspend of
approx. £0.5m in the year. This reflects the increasing demands on the service from both
increased number of children with EHCP’s (see section 3.4 below) and increase in
number of required routes to comply with legislation. Further work will be required to
understand the impact of Covid on this budget as schools open up in full from this month.

2.7

Members will however be aware of the work being undertaken to address some of these
pressures via the Best Value programme established jointly by the council and the CCG
in the following areas :




2.8

Route 29 (No Wrong Door)
Achieving Change Together (ACT)
Transforming Care
Domestic Abuse & Trauma Informed Response to Adversity

The Route 29 (No Wrong Door model) element of this programme was officially launched
in January. Prior to this launch, work has been undertaken to review all placements with
a resulting reduction in original base cohorts of 22 outside placements (OP’s) (48 to 26)
and 35 independent foster agency (IFA’s) (63 to 28), which have in part been offset by
new placements (12 OP’s and 27 IFA’s) to the end of December 2020. Overall financial
impact on placement budget of these net reductions are detailed in the table below.

£m
Full-year benefit as a result of ending 22 original baseline
cohort of 48 placements
Cost of the 12 “net” new placements
Full-year benefit as a result of ending 35 of original baseline
cohort of 63 IFAs
Cost of the 27 “net” new IFAs

Net Benefit to end November 2020 – Full-Year Impact

Page 13

+5.3
-3.4
+1.5
-1.2
2.2
3

2.9

In addition there has been significant cost avoidance through the Route 29, ACT and
Transforming Care programmes, working with children either on the edge of care or at
risk of placement breakdown, which would otherwise potentially have come into more
expensive placements. Whilst it cannot be said with absolute certainty that without this
intervention all these children would have had to be accommodated, it is possible based
on cases now closed to give an indicative estimate of cost avoidance by this intervention
of between £3.6m and £4m per annum.

2.10 There has been an overall reduction in the LAC pressure of £0.9m from that reported at
the start of 2019/20 (May 19 monitoring), which will potentially increase in 21/22 with the
full year effect of the reduction in placement numbers. .

3 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Outturn 2020/21
3.1

The year-end forecast for centrally held Dedicated Schools Grant budgets is set out in
Table B below.

3.2

Table B: DSG dedicated schools grant forecast

DSG
funding
block

2020/21
Allocation

Forecast
outturn
expend

Forecast
variance

£000

£000

£000

High needs

25,263

29,394

(4,131)

Early years

15,595

15,550

45

● (GREEN)

6

Schools

3,966

4,060

(94)

● (AMBER)

(606)

44,824

49,004

(4,180)

● (RED)

(20,873)

Total

Risk

Forecast
balance
31st Mar 20
£000

● (RED)

(20,273)

3.3

The current position within the Non Delegated Schools Budget for 2020/21 is a projected
overspend of £4.180m. This is due in the main to an overspend on the High Needs block
and is a continuation of the pressures experienced in the previous year’s offset in part by
the impact of the increase High Needs block funding and the implementation of some of
the savings identified within the DSG recovery plan.

3.4

The prevalence of children and young people with Education Health & Care Plans
continues to increase. (January 2020 – 2155; July – 2325). There are still a combination

Page 14

4

of factors which are contributing to these rising numbers. These include population
growth, advances in medicine which mean that children born prematurely or with
disabilities survive and live longer than before (this also means that the types of
additional needs are more complex than ever before), increased diagnosis of some
conditions (e.g. autism), increased parental expectations about the support their child
should receive, increasing levels of poverty and the extension of services for children
and young people with SEND up until the age of 25.
As well as providing top-up funding for support in mainstream schools, the majority of
the high needs block also funds places in special schools including non-maintained
special schools as well as places in alternative provision. These places are funded at
£10k per place, plus additional top up funding depending on the needs of the pupil.
Numbers in this area continue to increase as parents often express a choice for a special
school based upon reputation. In addition, Salford commissions places for pupils with
SEND in Independent Special Schools which are typically significantly more expensive
than placements in mainstream schools. The average cost of placements is £52,000 per
year. The development of the new special school in Salford providing 50 places for young
people with complex autism/behaviour will mitigate the costs attributed to the
independent sector. So, in Salford, what we are experiencing is that:

4



For a range of reasons (including relating to funding), mainstream schools are
struggling to provide support for pupils with SEND



As a result of that and also because of increased parental preference, more
pupils with SEND are being placed in special schools, including those outside of
the state sector



Those placements are more expensive and costs are increasing, but there is
limited leverage over pricing in the independent and non-maintained sectors in
particular

Issues/Risks
As identified above, further work will be required to assess the cost impact of Covid
both in the short term and the medium/long term impact on services.

5

Recommendations
It is recommended that Children’s Scrutiny Panel:

Consider the current position and forecast year-end position for the service group’s
revenue budget, Dedicated Schools Grant budget and Children’s element of the
Integrated Fund.



Request further information as necessary to help to ensure good governance.

Page 15

5

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
2020/21 Revenue Budget

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
Equality impact assessments are assessed at an individual savings level by the
service group responsible

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
Key risks to budgetary control and savings are identified in this report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Not applicable

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
This report concerns key aspects of the Council’s revenue finances and has been produced
by the Finance Division.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Not applicable

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Not applicable

Page 16

6

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Not applicable

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Not applicable

CONTACT OFFICER: Chris Mee, tel. 0161 778 0434, chris.mee@salford.gov.uk, Dave
Cope 0161 778 0213 dave.cope@salford.gov.uk

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:
All

Page 17

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Children’s Scrutiny Panel
Work Programme and Recommendations 2020-21
SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS
Date

Topic/Action

Responsible officer (s)

Business planning/Work programme development

Charlotte Ramsden
Strategic Director - People

12 August 2020



The council’s response to Covid19 in terms of schools and how the reopening the larger groups and the full re-opening in September

Cathy Starbuck

9 September 2020



Budget Monitoring Report inc High Needs Block and SEN Transport/
Service Group Budgets

Cathy Starbuck/Geoff
Catterall Chris Mee/Dave Cope



Corporate Parenting Panel Update: Including the wellbeing of LAC and
care leavers.

Mike Kelly



Route 29 review

Samya Khan & Zoe Fearon

7 October 2020




Debbie Blackburn
Childhood obesity and nutrition
Update on the recruitment and retention of Foster Carers – Recruitment and
Retention of Foster Carers (including the impact of the changes to
payments and GM comparisons).

11 November 2020



The support for children’s well-being and the recovery curriculum (linked to
the social and emotional support for children and young people).



Update on the recruitment and retention of Foster Carers – Recruitment and Mike Kelly
Retention of Foster Carers (including the impact of the changes to
payments and GM comparisons).

Debbie Blackburn

Agenda Item 6



Page 19

29 July 2020

9 December 2020



Page 20

Mike Kelly
Cathy Starbuck



Corporate Parenting Panel Update (to include an update on Contact
Centres during Covid19)
Reopening of schools update

13 January 2021



School Improvement - How schools are managing catch-up.

Cathy Starbuck

10 February 2021



The report on the review of access to children and young people’s mental
health services (including bereavement services)

Debbie Blackburn

10 March 2021




Corporate Parenting Panel Update
Service Group Budgets

Sayma Khan/New Manager
Chris Mee

14 April 2021



GCSEs, testing and assessment 2021 – an update on the requirements for
schools and how schools are approaching this.

Cathy Starbuck

Regular monitoring reports





Service Group Budgets (Chris Mee/Dave Cope)
Updates from the Corporate Parenting Board (quarterly - Mike Kelly?)
Service Group priorities (annually)
School Performance Data (annually - Cathy Starbuck)
Topics in abeyance

Children’s Dental Health
Children’s Obesity
A Learning City
Development of GM agenda and how this affects the CSD
Reviews
Accessing Children’s and Young People’s Mental Health Services
Review of Route 29

Last updated 12.01.21

Councillor Edwards

2

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
Title of Report

Date of submissions and responses

Portfolio of the Board:






Page 21

Children in Need
Integrated Looked after Children
Early Intervention
Children’s Safeguarding
Integrated Youth Support including Youth Offender
Service
 Complex Needs Inclusion
 Complex Needs SEN
 School Provider Arm
 Starting Life Well
 Transforming Learning
 Skills and Work
 Primary School Place Planning programmes
 Partnerships and Commissioning (including the Children
and Young People’s Trust)
 To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this
functional area.

Last updated 12.01.21

Responsible Lead Member/officer

Membership – 12 Members (10 Lab 2 Con)
Cllr A Brocklehurst (Chair)
Cllr J Brooks
Cllr J Collinson
Cllr Edwards
Cllr A Leitner
Cllr L Nelson
Cllr M Pevitt
Cllr N Reynolds
Cllr M Wade
Cllr Joan Walsh
Cllr C Weir
Cllr R Wilson
Co-opted Members
Dr Keith Archer
Ms Jacqui Morrissey
Mrs Judith Elderkin
Five vacancies (free churches rep, Jewish Rep, RC Rep; 2 parent gov)
Lead member: Councillor John Merry (Exec Support Cllr John Walsh)
Key Officers: Charlotte Ramsden, Cathy Starbuck, Zoe Fearon, Debbie
Blackburn, Beck Bibby)

3

This page is intentionally left blank

